Table of Contents

New to using Doc Express	2
How to set up an account	2
Getting started	3
Logging In	3
Logging Out	4
Looking at the contract(s)	5
To view the list of contracts	5
Contract information	6
Marking a contract(s)	6
What are "Drawers"?	7
Agreements and Resolutions	8
Contract Documents	8
Contract Signing	8
Environmental	8
Estimates and Voucher	8
Items and Materials Documentation	8
(Pay Items on Iowa DOT contracts)	8
Meetings	9
Payrolls	9
Plans	9
Project Closeout	9
Shop Drawings	9
Traffic Control	9
Weekly Reports	9
Working Documents	9
How to use the Drawers	10
Drawers that do NOT require signatures	10

Drawers that DO require signatures	10
Drawer that DOES require Digital Signature	10
How to submit documents	10
Adding a document	10
Open submitted documents	12
Payrolls	12
What are Transitions	13
Transition of documents	13
Digital Signature	14
Creating the Digital ID	14
Who is first, second, and third	15
The "Workflow"	15
Removing a Document	15
Resubmit	16
Revert Transition (undo)	16
Final Transition	16
Signature Transition	17
Rejecting Documents	17
Exporting All Documents	19
When something needs done	20
Badges and Number Indicators	20
Notifications	20
When did that happen	22
Activity log	22
At a glance	23
Dashboard	23
Searching	24
Filter and Search	24
Subcontractors	25
Need added to a contract	25
How to update your account	26
Updating your account information	26

Doc Express for Local Public Agencies

lowa Department of Transportation

Doc Express is required to be used on all Iowa Department of Transportation (DOT) let projects. This has been in place since the July 2018 letting.

DO NOT GO TO THE DOC EXPRESS WEB SITE AND REGISTER ON YOUR OWN. WAIT FOR FURHTER INSTRUCTIONS TO FOLLOW.



New to using Doc Express

The Local Public Agency (LPA) will need to provide some necessary information to Derek Peck in the Local Systems Bureau. You will need to send an email or call Derek to be informed of what information is needed to get set up to use Doc Express. This is only necessary for first time users. Contact Derek at <u>derek.peck@iowadot.us</u> or 515-239-1391. If the LPA has already been using Doc Express, proceed to page 3.

DO NOT GO TO THE DOC EXPRESS WEB SITE AND REGISTER ON YOUR OWN, CONTACT DEREK.

How to set up an account

Once Derek is contacted, he will notify InfoTech Onboarding to create the LPA business account. Onboarding will then work with the LPA to create the business account. InfoTech Onboarding will assign a DocExpress Administrator to the account allowing this person to invite others from the organization to join. It is recommended LPAs assign two employees the Administrator role within the business account in case an employee leaves. After the business account has been set up with an LPA's administrator, you will receive an email from InfoTech Onboarding with instructions to activate your account.

NOTE: Check your junk/spam folder if you don't receive an email from InfoTech with your account invite.

DO NOT GO TO THE DOC EXPRESS WEB SITE AND REGISTER ON YOUR OWN. WAIT FOR YOUR E-MAIL INVITATION FROM INFO TECH TO JOIN THE LPA BUSINESS GROUP.

The following screen will be displayed. Complete all of the fields, and then click the "Activate" button. Some of the drawers will require electronically signing a document, how you enter your name in the "First Name" and "Last Name" fields, is how you will have to enter your name in the signature box. See the Signature Process section later in this User's Guide.

NOTE: Be sure to click on the "I have read and agreed to" statement box.

Once logged into the Doc Express program you will need to notify Derek of the account created. Then access will be given to see the contracts and drawers that you have been given access. If you feel you are missing contract(s) and/or drawer(s), contact Derek at <u>Derek.peck@iowadot.us</u> or 515-239-1391.



NOTE: DO NOT create the Digital ID option on the "My Account" section, this is for Bid Express only.

Getting started

Logging In

Once your account is created, as instructed above, go to <u>https://docexpress.com</u>. Click on the "Login to Doc Express" button in the top right of the page.



Enter your Email address. If you want your email to remain in the Email field for future visits to this site, check the box to "Remember me". Click on the "Continue" button.

infotech.		
Sign in		
*Email	Remember me	
derek.peck@iowadot.us		
	Continue	
Don't have a	an account? Sign up	



Enter your password and click "Sign in."

infotech.	
derek.peck@iowadot.us	
Enter password	
*Password	Forgot password?
	Ø
Sign in	
Back	

Once logged in, the contract(s) that you have access to will be displayed. If you don't see any contract(s) this may mean that access has not yet been given. After the award, additional information will be added by Derek (i.e. the Prime Contractor name and the contract items).

Logging Out

The Logout option is always available in the upper right corner of the page as a black circle containing your initials.



Click here and choose the blue "Sign Out" button.



KIM REYNOLDS, GOVERNOR

SCOTT MARLER, IOWA DOT DIRECTOR



Looking at the contract(s)

To view the list of contracts

There are two ways to view the list of contracts: List View and Grid View.

Either view option can be selected, located on the right hand side, by clicking on the three horizontal lines or the tile squares.

Toggle between them to choose your preference.





Contract information

The first line will display the contract id. For example: cc-nnn-ppp

Where:

cc - county number nnnn - county number beginning with CO, or the four digit city number ppp - paran number of the lead project

The county or city name and project number is displayed on the second line. If there are multiple projects, all project numbers will be shown. Additional projects in the contract will be listed in their entirety.

The following information is also shown, (when the curser is hooved over the icon symbol):

- Prime Contractor,
- The location of the project will be constructed,
- Date the contract was let, and
- Bid order number of the contract.

All the drawers available for that particular contract will be shown.

Marking a contract(s)

If you have access to multiple contracts but you are only working with a few of them, you have the option to mark the contract(s) as your favorite(s) and they will automatically be at the top of your list. To do so, find the check mark flag to the far right of the contract id. When you click on it, it will turn yellow so you can easily see that it has been marked as a favorite.



The favorite contracts will be listed first out of all the contracts listed.

If you no longer want a contract marked as a favorite, simply click on the yellow check mark flag again and the contract will revert back to its original position in the list of contracts (by number and then alphabetically).





What are "Drawers"?

Drawers are designed to organize different documents/files that different users will be submitting. A document/file can be linked to one or more drawers. Selected users have access to drawers according to their role in the contract administration process. If you do not see a drawer within the contract, then you do not have access to it. If you feel that you should have access to a drawer that is not visible, contact Derek at <u>Derek.peck@iowadot.us</u> or 515-239-1391.

NOTE: it will be the user's responsibility to open each document/file and view it to determine if the document is correct or not. Keep this in mind as you move through the following instructions.

The users are defined as (for further defining the roles, see I.M. 3.805):

- Administering Office The Iowa DOT's representative who is responsible for oversight of the project. The representative may be a Region Local Systems Engineer, or their designee; or from the Systems Planning.
- *Contracting Authority* The governmental body, board, commission, or office having authority to award a contract.
- *Contractor* The individual, firm, corporation, or joint venture contracting with the Contracting Authority for performance of prescribed work.
- *Engineer* the Engineer is a Professional Engineer licensed in the State of Iowa and authorized representative of the Contracting Authority. The Engineer may act directly or through a duly authorized representative (see <u>Article 1101</u>.03 of the Standard Specifications).
- FHWA Federal Highway Administration.
- *Inspector* An authorized representative of the Engineer (see <u>Article 1101</u>.03 of the Standard Specifications).
- Person in Responsible Charge (PIRC): If the Contracting Authority uses a consultant to perform construction inspection services, the Contracting Authority is required to have a full time employee who is in responsible charge of the project. A consultant may not serve as the Person in Responsible Charge for a Federal-aid project.
- *Subcontractor* Any individual, firm, or corporation to whom the Contractor, with the written consent of the Contracting Authority, sublets any part of the contract.



Agreements and Resolutions

If desired, this drawer can include the Agreements and Resolutions files for the project.

Change Order

(Contract Modifications on Iowa DOT contracts)

Change Order(s) that were created on Form 831240, Change Order for Local Public Agency Projects, are to be placed in this drawer. This drawer will require signatures.

Contract Documents

All necessary contract documents can be placed in this drawer for easy reference (i.e. contract, specifications, Predetermined Wage Rates, etc.). A full list of contract document files that should be included in this drawer is available in the Appendix to this User's Guide. Adding or submitting contract document files to this drawer are typically done by the Contract Administrator. Others may also have submittal privileges to this drawer and can submit if appropriate.

Contract Signing

The contract is placed in this drawer for a digital signature. The person authorized to sign the contract does this by creating a Digital ID in this drawer. Only the DOT Contracts and Specifications Bureau, and the Contractor can submit contract related documents. View access is given to everyone related to the project, for viewing of the signed contract and related contract documents.

Environmental

All necessary environmental documents are to be placed in this drawer for easy reference.

Estimates and Voucher

All Pay Estimates and vouchers must be placed in this drawer.

Items and Materials Documentation

(Pay Items on Iowa DOT contracts)

This drawer is for documents that pertain to the contract items. At the completion of a contract, all item forms and support forms shall be scanned (if hardcopy) or saved as pdf files (if Excel documents) and attached to the appropriate contract item in this drawer.

This drawer also includes the files that pertain to the Material testing and Certifications for the contract items. There are a few regularly use Material types listed at the top for every contract with many of the other types being grouped by HMA, PCC Paving, Structures, etc. At the completion of a contract, all item forms and support forms shall be scanned (if hardcopy) or saved as pdf files (if Excel documents) and attached to the appropriate contract item in this drawer.



NOTE: Multiple Material Certifications can be one file and add all of the "Types" for the item(s) it covers. Then the "Tags" will show with the one submit.

Meetings

The minutes from all meetings related to this contract should be placed in this drawer.

Payrolls

This drawer includes payroll documentation required on contracts that include Federal-aid funding.

Plans

This drawer includes the plan files for the contract.

Project Closeout

This drawer includes the files that are required to finalize and closeout a contract. This drawer will require signatures.

Shop Drawings

This drawer includes the Shop Drawings files for the contract. Not all contracts require shop drawing submittals, but if desired all shop drawings may be placed in this drawer. Shop drawings that are required by the Iowa DOT will be automatically distributed to the appropriate Iowa DOT staff.

Traffic Control

This drawer includes all documents that pertain to the traffic control on the contract, including the Contractor's Traffic Control Daily Diary.

Weekly Reports

This drawer includes the files all weekly reports on the progress of the contract. This drawer will require signatures.

Working Documents

This drawer is a place to work on a document before publishing it to another drawer. It does allow documents to be submitted, reviewed, modified, and resubmitted as it is being developed. The original document will remain in this drawer. The finalized document will be published to another drawer. PDF files should not be submitted to this drawer since they cannot be edited. Anyone with access to a contract can submit documents to this drawer to begin the review process.



How to use the Drawers

Detail usage for the drawers, includes how to add documents, approving documents, receiving, rejecting, resubmitting, removing, and signing. Also use the "Comment" field and adding "Attachments".

Drawers that do NOT require signatures

- Agreements and Resolutions
- Contract Documents
- Environmental
- Estimates and Vouchers
- Items and Materials Documentation
- Meetings
- Payrolls
- Plans
- Shop Drawings
- Traffic Control
- Working

Drawers that **DO** require signatures

- Change Orders
- Project Closeout
- Weekly Reports

Drawer that **DOES** require Digital Signature

• Contract Signing

How to submit documents

Adding a document

Begin by selecting which drawer you want to work under in your contract. Once in the selected drawer, click on the "Submit Document" button option.





Enter in the necessary information in all the required fields that appear (required fields have an asterisk by the title of the field).

Several drawers have drop-down listings in the "Types" field. Multiple items can be selected if needed. For the list of Types and the naming convention of files, see Appendix of this User's Guide. To add multiple Types" after making the first selection, just click in the same field again and the listing will appear again.

In the "Attachment" field, click on the "Browse . . ." button to find the file on any drive for which you have access. Select the document and click "Open".

NOTE: only pdf files should be attached as they cannot be modified and is the desired format for archiving. When not attaching a file, click on "Enter text instead of attaching a document?" to enter text for the document in place of a file. This option may not be available in all drawers for "Submit Document".

SPECIAL NOTE: Certain PDF files created in Adobe programs can only be opened in Adobe Reader and Adobe Acrobat. When trying to open the file in another PDF viewer, in Doc Express you will see in place of the correct page, a message "Please wait......If this message is not eventually replaced by the proper contents of the document, your PDF viewer may not be able to display this type of document." If this happens the creator of the original form will need to re-create the form using options that do not restrict which PDF viewers can open and display the document.

If additional files are needed to support the main document, click on "Add a supporting document?" Additional fields will appear for the "Supporting Documents" area. Multiple files can be added. Supporting Documents can be attached either at the time of the submittal or at any transition, but none is required.

In the "Comment" field, add any additional comments. This can be added either at the time of the submittal or at any transition, but none is required.

When finished, click on the "Save" button option. If you don't click on the save option, the actions will not be processed. **Do Not "Transition"** after you have done the submittal option, unless you are the person that is next according to the "Workflow" for the drawer you are working in.

When you are working in a drawer and need to return to your Contracts list, just click on the "Contracts" header of the page. This option can be done at any time.



NOTE: Before moving on and performing any **"Transition"** of a document(s), check the "Workflow" for the drawer you are working in. (Detailed instructions are available on page 14).



Open submitted documents

Under every drawer is the option to open and view a document that has been submitted for that contract.

NOTE: The option to view a document is suggested before a "Status" action is performed.

Review the document by clicking on the name of the document in either of the two locations.

Message box should pop-up asking if you want to "Open", "Save" or "Cancel" for the document title you clicked on to open for review.

	Add comment / supporting document
Feb 01 2016	08:13 AM CST Title Changed From Change Order For Atlantic To Co 02 Iowa Local Systems _DEMO ACCOUNT - Tammi Bell
Jan 24 2016	12:40 PM CST Received Iowa Local Systems_DEMO ACCOUNT - Donna Buchwald
Jan 24 2016	12:31 PM CST Submitted 1 CO 02 Iowa Local Systems _DEMO ACCOUNT - Tammi Linn

Save 🔻 Cancel

Open

Payrolls

Submittals in this drawer can only be made by the Prime Contractor, after they have reviewed and signed them. If a payroll is incorrect for any reason, you should reject it so the submitter can correct the issue and resubmit it correctly as a revised submittal. It is important to review the first 3-4 payrolls received from the Contractor and each subcontractor carefully to be sure information is complete and accurate. Once it is apparent that wage rates used are appropriate, it is not necessary to check each line of each payroll. However, occasional spot checks should continue to be made, paying particular attention to new crafts listed.

Since not every payroll needs to be checked, in the Comment field there should be a comment made stating they were checked and by whom for each payroll checked. This can be done at the time the status is changed to Received.

It must be obvious when looking at the submittals which payrolls were checked and which were not.



What are Transitions

Transition of documents

Documents move between users through transitions. When a transition occurs the status will change. Depending on which email notifications you selected (See the Notification section in this User's Guide, page 21), you will receive an email when a document is ready for your signature or to perform the review. Transitions between Doc Express users occur in the order in which the review approval is set in the drawer. Prior to selecting the transition, you should open the document and view it to determine if the document is correct or not.

Select the drawer under the contract. Click "Transition" then the transition dialog box will open. Click the down arrow for the "Status" field and select a status. Enter a comment, if any. Add any additional supporting documents, if needed. (This will not affect the original attachment.) Sign the document, if required.

Comment

Fransition Document

Status

Review the document by clicking on the name of the document in either of the two locations.

NOTE: A message box may appear with the option to select Open, Save, or Cancel. Click on the proper action. Click "Open" to view the document. A new window will open displaying the document.

If you are satisfied with the document and ready to approve it, to do this, click on the "Transition" link. If you are not satisfied with the document, you should "Reject" it so that the user can resubmit (see Rejecting Documents section in this User's Guide).

The "Transition Document" dialog box will appear. Click on the drop-down arrow and select from listed options. Be sure to click "Save".







After a document has been transitioned, the next person in the process will be notified.

If you are authorized to complete both the second-to-last step and the final step, or if the second-to-last step is optional, you may see a check box to finalize the document.

NOTE: The gold color title is referred as a "Tag" for the type of a document that has been submitted in the contracted.



Digital Signature

Creating the Digital ID

Only the person who is authorized and normally signs the contract needs to go through the process to obtain a digital ID for signing the contract. **Do Not create the digital id from the "My Account" section, that is for Bid Express only, not Doc Express.**

For instructions related to the digital id and signing the contract, you will need to reference the "Contract Signing for Local Public Agency (LPA) In Doc Express Instructions" document. This document is sent to the LPA's in the month the project is let.

Contract Signing Drawer Workflow

Submit (Contracts and Specifications Bureau and Prime Contractor) Local Public Agency Award Contract (by Local Public Agency) Contractor Verify Performance Bond (by Contractor) Signed by Contractor (Digital ID) (by Contractor) Received by Local Public Agency (by Local Public Agency) Local Public Agency View and Sign Performance Bond (by Local Public Agency) Local Public Agency Signed Contract (Digital ID) (by Authorized Signatory) Checked by Contracts and Specifications Bureau Personnel (DOT) Signed by Contracts and Specifications Bureau (DOT) Marked Completed by Contracts and Specifications Bureau (DOT)

NOTE: When creating the digital id you need to allow time for system approval, which can take up to 24 hours, before being able to sign the contract in Doc Express.



Who is first, second, and third

The "Workflow"

Each drawer has its own Workflow process. If you have submitted a document and you want to know who is next to receive it or do an approval here is how you can find out.

Status

Submi Review Appro

Recor

Appro

Appro Appro Appro Comp Doc Status Reject

After you have submitted/transitioned the document, select the "Actions"	
button option.	

From there select "Details".

The whole Workflow process for the Drawer you are working in w shown.

The Workflow Order does vary depending on the Drawer.

You may have noticed that there are "Badges" indicating an transition needs done. It may be at the person before you to make the transition option.

۱ ۱ . ا	
e "Actions"	Submit Document Actions -
	Upload Multiple Documents
	Details
	Export
ı will be	Export Log
Document Workflow (Order
Status	
Submitted	•
Review by Engineer	•
Approved by Contractor	•
Recommended by Engineer	•
Approved by PIRC (when applica	ible)
Approved by District Materials Er	ngineer 🔴
Approved by Administering Office	e or designee
Approved by FHWA (When appli	cable)
Completed	•
Document Resubmiss	ions
Status	
Rejected	-

NOTE: The Status of the transition that has been performed will appear on the right side and will be in the action log. The Status title is stating who did the last transition, it is not indicating who is next to do a transition.

Removing a Document

If you need to remove a document, click Actions" and then selecting "Remove".

A message box will appear asking "Are you sure you want to remove the document title?" Click on "OK" will delete the document or "Cancel" will stop the removal of the document.



If a comment has been made on the document, you are not able to remove this document. If the Status is "Submitted" there is no action that can be taken. The option of "Revert Transition" is available for an "Approved" or "Rejected" document.

Resubmit

This option is available in some of the drawers. If this option is available, anyone can enter documents and begin the review process. If an attachment needs to be added to the draft document, click on the "Resubmit" option.

When performing a "Resubmit" option, a signature will be required (see Signature Process in this User's Guide).

Revert Transition (undo)

A transition can be undone; if you find that what you did it was an error.

Select the drawer that needs this transition done.

Select "Action" button option, then select the "Revert Transition".

A confirmation window will appear to confirm the transition, select "Ok".

Final Transition

Some users will need to approve documents that are being submitted. If you are the last one to approve, be sure to check the box to indicate "Transition document to final status of Completed?"

Trans	sition Do	cument			
* Statu	ŝ				
Approv	ed by Admini	stering Office			
Comme	ent				
Suppor Add a s	ting Docum upporting do	ents cument?			_
		Sign thi	is docun	nent	
	By checking electroni	g this box and ically signing	d entering g the attacl	my name al	bove, I an ent.





Signature Transition

Some of the drawers will require a submittal to be electronically signed. Who signs a submittal is dependent on the form that is submitted. Some forms will require only one signature and others will require multiple signatures. This will be accomplished by marking the check box acknowledging that you intend to electronically sign the document. This may also require the individual to check a box and type their name in the field shown "By checking this box I am electronically signing the attached document". When typing in the name, Doc Express will

* Status		
Received		
Comment		
Add a supporting docu	is box I am electronica document.	ally signing the attached

then verify that the name signed matches the name that is registered with Doc Express.

Once the dialog box appears, select the "status" and check the box acknowledging that you intend to electronically sign the document.

You may also be required to type your name; if so, type your *name exactly as you registered with Doc Express*. Optionally, you may also enter comments or add supporting documentation. Click Save in the pop-up.

It is very important that when typing in the name that it matches EXACTLY that of the user logged into the program. For example, if Shannon Westwood would enter "Shannon D Westwood", "shannon Westwood", "shannon westwood", none would be accepted since they do not match the name per the login. The login and signature are case sensitive. For the signature to be official, must check the box for the following statement "By checking this box and entering my name above, I am electronically signing the attached document". If the signature is entered and this box is not checked, an error message will appear.

* Status			
Approved by Ad	ministering Office	~	
Comment			
Supporting Doc	uments		
Supporting Doo Add a supporting	um <mark>ents</mark>) document?		
Supporting Doo Add a supporting	suments) document?		
Supporting Doo Add a supporting	suments document? Sign this document		
Supporting Dod Add a supporting By chec elect	uments document? Sign this document king this box and entering my nam ronically signing the attached docu	e above, i am ument.	

Rejecting Documents

You have the option of rejecting it is incorrect or not filed properly. In some cases, you may be both the Submitter and the Receiver of the document.

You have the option until the status is "Received" to change some parts of a document no matter who originally submitted it. For instance:

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION LOCAL SYSTEMS BUREAU www.iowadot.gov/local systems

- If the document was submitted to the wrong type in the drawer and/or should be added to another, you can move and/or add it to the appropriate type IN THE SAME
- If the title of the document is incorrect and should be changed, you can change it.
- If the due date should be changed, you can change it.
- If the document was submitted to the incorrect drawer, it must be rejected and then resubmitted in the correct drawer.

To do so, click on the word "update" just to the right of the type.

The following screen will be displayed where you can change the title of the document; change the due date; and the types by either change, add to additional types, or remove types for the submittal. Be sure to click on the "Save" button option.

If the submitted document is not correct AND there has not been a comment made, here are the options:

- If you were NOT the submitter, reject the submittal everyone with access to that drawer will automatically be notified of the rejection (if they have that notification option set).
- The person who submitted the document will need to remove it and re-submit it correctly. Need to remember, this can only be done by the submitter if **no comments or transitions have occurred**.
- If you were the submitter, click on the "Remove Document" and re-submit it correctly.

Do NOT receive it if it's incorrect!

If you want to "Receive" or "Reject" the submittal and possibly make a comment during that process, click "Transition" link. "Remove" is an option available only if you were the original submitter and there has been no comment made or transition done.

Once you select either "Received" or "Rejected" then click "Save", the submittal is a "done deal" – no changing it or removing it.

Transition Document	(
* Status	
Received Rejected	
Guinnen	
Supporting Documents Add a supporting document?	
	Save Cancel

Update	
* Title	
DBE cert	
Due date	
Types	
Certification of DBE Accomplishment for Locally Procured Federal-aid Contracts (Form 517013)	×
Save	Cancel





DRAWER.



Exporting All Documents

At any time, you can export all of the documents related to the contracted project. Be sure to export all of the documents when the project is completed for your own record retention period.

Start by selecting the contract that you are wanting to export. This can be done by clicking on the contract ID name.

From the Actions button option select "Export".

Message will appear across the Doc Express header stating "Export is in progress. You will receive an email with a link to download the export once it is done.

Export is in progress. You will receive an email with a link to download the export once it is done.





When something needs done

Badges and Number Indicators

A badge with a number in it beside a drawer reflects the number of documents in that drawer with a "Transition" status. For instance, if the badge has a 4 in it, there are 4 different submittals needing transitions. This is an easy way to see what contracts and what drawers have a need for some action to be taken. Having this badge displayed is automatic and is not dependent on any other choices made within the program.

Change Orders	4
Contract Docs	1
Estimates & Vouchers	1
Working	1

NOTE: This will be displayed whether or not the "Transition" option is for you or someone else to "Transition" the document in that drawer.

Notifications

You can set notifications to have the Doc Express service send an email to you when there are changes to your contract documents. This is for all contracts you are assigned to. You do not have to submit a document to receive notifications.

To set your notification options, click on "Notifications & Settings".



Then select which process best fits your need.

• Progressed Document – You will receive an email when a document has progressed to the next step in its workflow.



KIM REYNOLDS, GOVERNOR

SCOTT MARLER, IOWA DOT DIRECTOR

• Completed Document - You will receive an email immediately when the final transition of a document has been executed.

• Rejected Document - You will receive an email immediately when a document has been rejected. Select which documents you want to get notified about:

- All documents I have access to Receive notification when any document to which you have access progresses to another step in the workflow.
- Documents I have worked on Receive notification when any document you worked on progresses to another step in the workflow.
- Documents ready for me to work on Receive notification when you are the user assigned to the next step in the document workflow.
- Only documents I submitted Receive notification when any document you submitted progresses to another step in the workflow.

NOTE: Related to the "Contract Signing" drawer, notifications should be set in order to be informed when the contract is placed in Doc Express and when transitions occur.

Use the Any Types or Any Drawers fields to limit your notifications to documents only of the selected types or in the selected drawers. You can select as many or as few types or drawers as you want.

Use the check box to limit the notifications to your favorite contracts.

III L	imit	notifications	to	only	my	favorite	contracts	•
-------	------	---------------	----	------	----	----------	-----------	---

When you are done making your notification preference, click the "Contracts" heading icon return to the listing of Contracts page.



to



When did that happen

Activity log

This is the action that had been performed on a document in a drawer for a contract.

The screen shot shows the log of transitions for a submittal in expanded view. This is confirmed by the gray arrow head to the right. If the arrow head is pointing up (as shown), the view is expanded; if the arrow is pointing down, the view is collapsed. Click on the arrow head to toggle between the collapsed and expanded views.



Information that is shown is the date of the submittal or transition. Next to the date is the time of the submittal or transition, and the status. Just below that are the comments, if any that were made during that particular transition of the document. On the bottom line is the company/organization/agency name followed by the person name responsible for that transition.

The log includes the original document that was submitted and all additional supporting documents.

When viewing the document, the signature history page will be displayed. The Doc Express Document Signing History page automatically becomes part of the document once the first signature has been obtained in Doc Express. As signatures are obtained, the names and dates are added to the appropriate level.

Doc Express Document Signing History Contract: 69-C069-052 Document: 436 - Final Payment				
This document is in the process of being electronically signed by all required signatories using the Doc Express service. Following are the signatures that have occurred so far.				
Date	Electronically Signed By			
09/04/2015	Jeff Skalberg Iowa Local Systems (Signed by Engineer or designee)			
	(Signed by Contractor)			



At a glance

Dashboard

The Dashboard gives you an overall view of information related to your documents in each drawer. You can see an overview, past due documents, documents ready for a transition, and contracts ending within a set time frame.

The Contract page, click on the "Dashboard" option.



The information that is displayed.

- Overview of contracts, documents, and supporting documents.
- Contracts Ending Soon, which should be the Late Start Date on your contract. You can determine the number of months to include.
- Documents Past Due. This list includes only those contracts/drawers/documents where a due date has been entered.
- Documents Ready To Be Transitioned. This includes all documents in all contracts in your list that need some kind of action to be completed. Displayed along with the contract information is the status of the document. Select a document to open by clicking on the document titled in blue.

► https://demo.decepres.com/dat/board D = @ C S DocLopres View Favorites Tools Help	x	ث × الم
+ □3 曲 + Page + Safety + Tools + @ + 週 週 記		🛃 🛞 My Account Lo
Doc Express [®]		Contracts Pederences 1
8		
Overview	Documents Past Due	Documents Ready To Be
10 92 2	O No documents found.	× I ransitioned
total contracts total documents total supporting documents		Contracts: All +
Last: 3 💌 Months 💌	Contracts Ending Soon	Drawers: Al +
6 contracts 44 documents 3 supporting documents	Ending within: 3 V Months V	test District 6 Practice / Agreement & Resolutions / Status:
20	No documents found.	CO #1 District 6 Practice / Change Orders / Status: Submit
		testing District 6 Practice / Change Orders / Status: Submit
8		Pay Estimate Atlantic Training / A D Estimates & Vouchers Status: Status:
20		Change Order Atlantic Training / A D Change Orders / State
15		change order for Atlantic Atlantic Training / A D Change Orders / Status: Received
10		change order for Atlantic Atlantic Training / A D Change Orders / Status: Recorded
		Contract Document #1 Atlantic Training / A D Contract Doc Status: Submitted
0 Nov Dec Jan		C O #3 Atlantic Training / A D Change Orders / Status:



When you are done reviewing your Dashboard, click the Doc Express heading icon to return to the listing of Contracts page.



Searching

Filter and Search

One of the filters available allows you to display only the contracts
marked as your "favorite". By using the filter option, the favorite
contracts will be displayed and the others will be hidden. To use this
filter option, click on the "star" icon.

To convert back to being able to view all of your contracts, click on the "paper" icon.

Filter fields are dependent on the screen you are viewing. The search field is visible on most pages but, by default, the filter fields are hidden.

For a basic search, click in the "Search for contracts" field. Type your parameters. Click on the "Search" button.



To expand your search options, click on the horizontal lines and then the filter fields are displayed. You can filter on one or more fields shown at the same time. If you filter on different types one right after the other,

B	*	





be sure to allow the list of submittals to refresh before selecting the next type to filter on. This is especially important when filtering in a drawer and selecting a type in the Document Types field.

Q. Search for documents		Search			
All Statuses	~	Document types			
All Document Submitters		From Submission Date To Submission Date			
Most Recently Updated		Today Since yesterday Within last 3 days Within 1 week Within 2 weeks Within 1 month			
Hide Archived					
Reset search					
	> ×				

If another search is to be performed, click on "Reset search" in red text, directly above the "X".

To collapse the search, click on the "X".

There are many options to finding and organizing your search and view. The following is in a drawer under a contract.

Q. Search for contracts			Search		
All Prime Contractors	>	From Letting Date	To Letting Date		
All Contracts	~	From Start Date	To Start Date		
Order By Name	>	From End Date	To End Date		

The "Dashboard" can help when searching for a named document "Tag" type.

"Tag" is the gold colored title type of a document that has been submitted in the contracted document.



Subcontractors

Need added to a contract

The Subcontractors are added to the contract by the Prime Contractor and the Prime Contractor will give access to the correct drawers. All contractors will need to have created their accounts directly with Doc Express at www.DocExpress.com

Page | 25



NOTE: Subcontractors **will not** have access to the "Payroll" drawer. Submittal is only done by the Prime contractor.

How to update your account

Updating your account information

To get to your account information go to "Account Settings" option in the upper right side of the found by clicking the black circle containing your initials.

::	Ų	?	DP
•	P		
Derek	Peck		
derek.peck(@iowado	it.us	
Iowa Loca	al Systen	ns	
Account	t settings		
Sig	n out		
Legal	Notices		
Derek derek.peck lowa Loca Account Sign Legal	C Peck @iowado al System t settings n out Notices	it.us ns	

The address and phone number displayed on the right of the page (under the blue briefcase icon) is the Iowa Department of Transportation, Local Systems Bureau address and cannot be changed by individual users.

You have the option to change your e-mail address, security challenge question, and password at any time. Do this by clicking the "Actions" button in the upper right side of the page and a drop down list will be displayed. Simply select the one you want to change and the appropriate page will be displayed.



KIM REYNOLDS, GOVERNOR

SCOTT MARLER, IOWA DOT DIRECTOR

infotech.			
	Derek Peck	Edit Actions -	
ĒI	Email	derek.peck@iowadot.us	
DIGITAL ID	Mobile		
	Phone	(515) 239-1391	
PAYMENTS	Fax		
NOTICES	Time Zone	Eastern Time (US & Canada)	

To change your mobile, phone, and fax numbers, click the "Edit" button and then make the desired changes <u>You cannot change the business name, business phone, or address</u>.

The most current document of the User's Guide can be found at the following website. https://iowadot.gov/local_systems/Doc-Express-and-Appia